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standards established in the interpreta-
tive regulations promulgated, either in 
interim or final form by the Office of 
Government Ethics and published at 5 
CFR part 737. 

(b) Former officers and employees of 
the Department wanting to know 
whether a proposed course of conduct 
would be in conformity with the Act or 
the interpretive regulations thereunder 
may contact the Assistant Legal Ad-
viser for Management to request an ad-
visory opinion. 

Subpart C—Administrative 
Enforcement Proceedings 

§ 18.6 Authority to prohibit appear-
ances. 

Pursuant to 18 U.S.C 207(j), if the Di-
rector General finds, after notice and 
opportunity for a hearing, that a 
former officer or employee of the De-
partment has violated 18 U.S.C. 207(a), 
(b) or (c), the Director General in his/ 
her discretion may prohibit that per-
son from engaging in practice before 
the Department for a period not to ex-
ceed five years, or may take other ap-
propriate disciplinary action. 

§ 18.7 Report of violation by a former 
employee. 

(a) If an officer or employee of the 
Department has reason to believe that 
a former officer or employee of the De-
partment has violated any provision of 
this part, or if any such officer or em-
ployee receives information to that ef-
fect, he/she shall promptly make a 
written report thereof, which report or 
a copy thereof shall be forwarded to 
the Director General. If any other per-
son has information of such violations, 
he/she may make a report thereof to 
the Director General or to any officer 
or employee of the Department. 

(b) The Director General shall coordi-
nate proceedings under this part with 
the Department of Justice in cases 
where it initiates criminal prosecution. 

§ 18.8 Institution of proceeding. 
Whenever the Director General deter-

mines that there is sufficient reason to 
believe that any former officer or em-
ployee of the Department has violated 
18 U.S.C. 207(a), (b) or (c), he/she may 
institute an administrative discipli-

nary proceeding. The proceeding may 
be for that person’s suspension from 
practice before the Department or for 
some lesser penalty. The proceeding 
shall be instituted by a complaint 
which names the respondent and is 
signed by the Director General and 
filed in his/her office. Except in cases 
of willfulness, or where time, the na-
ture of the proceeding, or the public in-
terest does not permit, a proceeding 
will not be instituted under this sec-
tion until facts or conduct which may 
warrant such action have been called 
to the attention of the proposed re-
spondent in writing and he/she has 
been accorded the opportunity to pro-
vide his/her position on the matter. 

§ 18.9 Contents of complaint. 
A complaint shall plainly and con-

cisely describe the allegations which 
constitute the basis for the proceeding. 
A complaint shall be deemed sufficient 
if it fairly informs the respondent of 
the charges against him/her so that the 
respondent is able to prepare a defense. 
Written notification shall be given of 
the place and of the time within which 
the respondent shall file his/her an-
swer, which time shall not be less than 
15 days from the date of service of the 
complaint. Notice shall be given that a 
decision by default may be rendered 
against the respondent in the event he/ 
she fails to file an answer. 

§ 18.10 Service of complaint and other 
papers. 

(a) Complaint. The complaint or a 
copy thereof may be served upon the 
respondent by certified mail; by deliv-
ering it to the respondent or his/her at-
torney or agent of record either in per-
son; or by leaving it at the office or 
place of business of the respondent, at-
torney or agent; in any other manner 
which has been agreed to by the re-
spondent; or by first-class mail in case 
of a person resident abroad. 

(b) Service of papers other than com-
plaint. Any paper other than the com-
plaint may be served upon a respondent 
as provided in paragraph (a) of this sec-
tion or by mailing the paper by first- 
class mail to the respondent at the last 
address known to the Director General, 
or by mailing the paper by first-class 
mail to the respondent’s attorney or 
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agent of record. Such mailing shall 
constitute complete service. 

(c) Whenever the filing of a paper is 
required or permitted in connection 
with a proceeding, and the place of fil-
ing is not specified by this subpart or 
by rule or order of the hearing exam-
iner, the paper shall be filed with the 
Director General, Department of State, 
Washington, DC 20520. All papers shall 
be filed in duplicate. 

§ 18.11 Answer. 
(a) Filing. The respondent’s answer 

shall be filed in writing within the 
time specified in the complaint or no-
tice of institution of the proceeding, 
unless on application the time is ex-
tended by the Director General. The 
answer shall be filed in duplicate with 
the Director General. 

(b) Contents. The answer shall con-
tain a statement of facts which con-
stitute the grounds of defense, and it 
shall specifically admit or deny each 
allegation set forth in the complaint. 
The respondent may also state affirma-
tively special matters of defense. 

(c) Failure to deny or answer allega-
tions in the complaint. Every allegation 
in the complaint which is not denied in 
the answer shall be deemed to be ad-
mitted and may be considered as 
proved. Failure to file an answer with-
in the time prescribed in the notice to 
the respondent, except as the time for 
answer is extended by the Director 
General shall constitute a waiver of 
hearing, and the Director General may 
make his/her decision by default with-
out a hearing or further procedure. 

§ 18.12 Motions and requests. 
Motions and requests, including re-

quests to intervene, may be filed with 
the Director General. 

§ 18.13 Representation. 
A respondent or proposed respondent 

may appear in person or he/she may be 
represented by counsel or other rep-
resentative. The Director General may 
be represented by an attorney or other 
employee of the Department. 

§ 18.14 Hearing examiner. 
(a) After an answer is filed, if the Di-

rector General decides to continue the 
administrative disciplinary pro-

ceedings, he/she shall appoint a hearing 
examiner to conduct those proceedings 
under this part. 

(b) Authorities. Among other powers, 
the hearing examiner shall have au-
thority, in connection with any pro-
ceeding assigned or referred to him/her, 
to do the following: 

(1) Take evidence under appropriate 
formalities; 

(2) Make rulings upon motions and 
requests; 

(3) Determine the time and place of 
hearing and regulate its course and 
conduct; 

(4) Adopt rules of procedure and mod-
ify the same from time to time as occa-
sion requires for the orderly disposi-
tion of proceedings; 

(5) Rule upon offers of proof, receive 
relevant evidence, and examine wit-
nesses; 

(6) Take or authorize the taking of 
depositions; 

(7) Receive and consider oral or writ-
ten argument on facts or law; 

(8) Hold or provide for the holding of 
conferences for the settlement or sim-
plification of the issues by consent of 
the parties; 

(9) Perform such acts and take such 
measures as are necessary or appro-
priate to the efficient conduct of any 
proceeding; and 

(10) Make initial decisions. 

§ 18.15 Hearings. 
Hearings shall be stenographically 

recorded and transcribed and the testi-
mony of witnesses shall be taken under 
oath or affirmation. Hearings will be 
closed unless an open hearing is re-
quested by the respondent, except that 
if classified information or protected 
information of third parties is likely to 
be adduced at the hearing, it will re-
main closed. If either party to the pro-
ceeding fails to appear at the hearing, 
after due notice thereof has been sent 
to him/her, he/she shall be deemed to 
have waived the right to a hearing and 
the hearing examiner may make a de-
cision against the absent party by de-
fault. 

§ 18.16 Evidence. 
The rules of evidence prevailing in 

courts of law and equity are not con-
trolling in hearings under this part. 
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